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To : The Council of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology (the
“University”) standing alone set out on pages 5 to 63,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2024, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in fund balances and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the University standing
alone as at 30 June 2024, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology Ordinance ("The HKUST
Ordinance").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements of the University Standing Alone
section of our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

1 2023/24 FEFE R
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Audit
of the

Responsibilities of the Council and the
Committee for the Financial Statements
University Standing Alone

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
HKUST Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either
intends to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the
University’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of the University Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the University’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Council.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
University to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 October 2024
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
FfeE BHET BHET
Notes $million $million
A
Income
BT Bl R BEK 3.1 3,486 3,169
Government Subventions and Grants
B R R HEAE 1,714 1,593
Tuition, Programs and Other Fees
FIEFCFHE WA 3.2 1,084 802
Interest and Net Investment Income
GNFAERR 163 126
Donations and Benefactions
TR B AR S R ELAt U A 33 485 423
Auxiliary Services and Other Income
R H RIS A S 17/25.13 354 348
Transfers from Deferred Capital Funds
7,286 6,461
B 3.5
Expenditure
BE -~ Bfg g
Teaching, Learning and Research
By 3,779 3,310
Teaching and Research
HEE 118 120
Library
B AR A 233 133
Central Computing Facilities
HA B M s 139 123
Other Academic Services
4,269 3,686
RS2 1%
Institutional Support
B —ETS 504 425
Management and General
& KA RHE A 887 863
Premises and Related Expenses
B4 Re— B s 398 323
Student and General Education Services
HAthES) 32 23
Other Activities
1,821 1,634
6,090 5,320
REERG 1,196 1,141

Surplus for the year

5 2023/24 FEFE R
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
s HET HET
Notes $million $million
FERZEMEE RS
Other comprehensive income for the year
NETER B A RBHSEE
Item that will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
FE N AR A A S T 2 T IR AT R RERE 23 AR B R 2 WS am /(i) 25.6 126 @)
Unrealised gain / (loss) on equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
126 (2)
FENSEREREE 1,322 1,139
Total comprehensive income for the year
Lt e
Transfers to:
BEGHEE 344 436
UGC Funds
PRAIER £ 152 54
Restricted Funds
Fptr 826 649
Other Funds
1,322 1,139

University Financial Statements 2023/24 6




RETERMAE

20246 H30H
UNIVERSITY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
2024 2023
[ HET HETT
Notes $million $million
Eln0=i-3
Non-Current Assets
YISE ~ TRES Rt 6 7,968 7,188
Property, Plant and Equipment
Y EE 7 15 16
Intangible Assets
{it P e 8 84 6
Right-of-use Assets
AT EEBHAM Y IR 2 f % & 9 546 420
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
BN PEEEUC IR S AR 9 11,492 10,112
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Income and Expenditure
ERE A E] 10 9 9
Investment in an Associate
Eit vV 11 21 21
Investments in Subsidiaries
20,135 17,772
TETHE
Current Assets
ek ! !
Inventories
FEWHRIOR TR HH 12 878 750
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments
JREIHA H A8 =8 5 2 E HIfERK 13 1,699 2,272
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months
B R ERRE 13 868 1,129
Cash and Cash Equivalents
3,446 4,152
FETE
Current Liabilities
eI R s 14 1,037 957
Accounts Payable and Accruals
HE&E 8 9 6
Lease Liabilities
P BB 15 179 167
Provision for Staff Benefits
IRIEN 16 1,686 2,245
Deferred Income
2,911 3,375
TEHERE 535 777
Net Current Assets
HERERREAR 20,670 18,549

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

7 2023/24 FEFE R
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FEREIEMR

Non-Current Liabilities

THE &

Lease Liabilities

F SR

Provision for Staff Benefits

RIS 2
Deferred Income

IRIEE A K
Deferred Capital Funds

HEFE
NET ASSETS

BEEES
UGC Funds

FRAIMES
Restricted Funds

HftrEZEE
Other Funds

ot
TOTAL FUNDS

G 220244:10 H 28 H A B R
Approved by the Council on 28 October 2024

o gei
RELE]HE
Stephen YIU Kin-Wah
Treasurer of the University

University Financial Statements 2023/24

2024@6 H30H
UNIVERSITY BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
2024 2023
[N HET HET
Notes $million $million

8 72 0

15 51 38

16 617 611

17 5,871 5,163

6,611 5,812

14,059 12,737

18 4,629 4,285

18 2,112 1,955

18 7,318 6,497

14,059 12,737

HERA A
& Bl (7B
Nancy IP Yuk-Yu TAM Kar-Yan
President Vice-President for

Administration and Business
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

202247 1H Z 6584
Balance as at 1 July 2022

FENEEWE /. (B4 S8

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

KRR RS
Surplus for the year

Hofth 2T

Other comprehensive loss

F5 N THE BB A S TR T R RERE 5 AR BB 4l
Unrealised loss on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

i

Inter-fund transfer

202346 H30H 202347 H 1 H >~ 4562
Balance as at 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023

FENEE LA

Total comprehensive income for the year

KRR RS
Surplus for the year

HAtr 2=

Other comprehensive income

F N THE BB H M SR T RIS AR TR 2 Gs
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

i
Inter-fund transfer

202446 H30H > 4564
Balance as at 30 June 2024

PEEES FRIMEES HAtrEes S
UGC Funds Restricted Funds Other Funds Total Funds
BET BET BET BET
$million $million $million $million
(Pt 18) (FfF=E18) (PFEE18)
(Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 18)
3,849 1,844 5,905 11,598
436 54 651 1,141
0 0 2 2
436 54 649 1,139
0 57 (57) 0
4,285 1,955 6,497 12,737
344 152 700 1,196
0 0 126 126
344 152 826 1,322
0 5 5) 0
4,629 2,112 7,318 14,059

2023/24 FEFE R
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
BHET BHETT
$million $million
BESZRENE
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
PEFE RS 1,196 1,141
Surplus for the year
gL
Adjustments for:
s e B 484 441
Depreciation and amortisation
HE & FE MR A 2 0
Finance cost of lease liabilities
FIEFCFEEWA (1,084) (802)
Interest and net investment income
S E R E AR (354) (348)
Transfers from deferred capital funds
RETHEFE R F B E S i 244 432
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital
JEUS BRI S PRI 4 (146) (252)
Increase in accounts receivable and prepayments
JEMHRRO B T2 A Z S 105 22
Increase in accounts payable and accruals
gl ey O A e il (297) 355
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred income
PO SRR A /OB V) 25 (26)
Increase/(Decrease) in provision for staff benefits
BEEHFRES RH)/ARA (69) 531

Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Operating Activities

University Financial Statements 2023/24 10
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REEHHERE
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

JEEYISE - PR Rt lis

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment

BEEP A
Payment for purchase of intangible assets

JFREIH H 8 = (] F 2 & Bk 2 ek b

Decrease in bank deposits with original maturity over three months

SR HEE R ORI A

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

(TS A T i 2 T B B P Z I I A

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at amortised cost

A HEBEBBCEUR Z IS EE Z A

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

B MR B WA

Interest and investment income received
REEFFREM N
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
RMEEHCRERE

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

FILEEYIZE ~ t25 Mok i M ARIP B e < BB S Rt
Subventions and grants and donations received for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

ZAHEAER

Payment of lease liabilities

RREDEETRRERA

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities

REREEBREZIFE(BD)EI

Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

EMLHERERAHRE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

FRZBEREFBE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

11

2024 2023
BET BHETT
$million $million
(1,283) (812)
O] (10)
573 975
(2,263) (1,511)
0 39
1,861 522
127 72
(992) (725)
806 364
Q] €))
800 355
261) 161
1,129 968
868 1,129

2023/24 FEFE R
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SRR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology is
incorporated under The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology Ordinance (Chapter 1141, Laws of Hong
Kong) as a technological university dedicated to the
advancement of learning and scholarship, with special
emphasis on research, postgraduate education, and close
collaboration with business and industry. The principal
activities and other particulars of the University’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 11.

The University’s registered address and principal place of
operation is Clear Water Bay, Hong Kong.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”), which is the University’s functional and
presentation currency. These financial statements were
approved for issue by the Council on 28 October 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), Cost
Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded Activities (“the Guidelines”) and the Statement of
Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for institutions funded
by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong
Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the historical cost convention, except
for the following assets which are stated at fair value:

— financial assets at fair value through income and
expenditure

— financial assets at fair value other

comprehensive income

through

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the University’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 24.

Consolidated financial statements for the University and
its subsidiaries have been prepared separately.
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT

(@) RERSTEBGT (R

University Segment Income and Expenditure (By function)

KA

Income
BUR BB Bk (BifsE 3.1)
Government subventions and grants (Note 3.1)
B SRR R A
Tuition, programs and other fees
FIEROFREEWA (FEE3.2)
Interest and net investment income (Note 3.2)

SNSURRR

Donations and benefactions

BhARS R EA A (IfTE 3.3)

Auxiliary services and other income (Note 3.3)

SR IR S A S
Transfers from deferred capital funds

FESZ (HfEE 3.5)

Expenditure (Note 3.5)

B ~ BRilg Ko

Teaching, Learning and Research
HE RS
Teaching and research
B
Library
P ER R
Central computing facilities

HA RS

Other academic services

WS 4%
Institutional Support

EHRRE

Management and general

& KA

Premises and related expenses

BHE KRB IR

Student and general education services
HAES)

Other activities

RERBGR/ ()
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year

FERE Eby/ (BHR) BR= -

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year transferred to:
nEgEE

UGC Funds

PRI

Restricted Funds

HoAth
Other Funds

2024 2023
Sz SR
BEE RS BEE B
HEES) Inter- HEES Inter-
UGC- segment UGC- segment
Funded JEREERUNER) Transaction SREEET Funded IEREEEED Transaction Bt
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
BE&EEZ BEEBEZ
RS RS
BEEE BEEE)
Self- Self-
financing RHEFSESD BHSHERCES) HAES) financing FIFEED FrisERCRED HAtESh
CPEP Research Donation Other INet CPEP Research Donation Other NSt
Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
BET HET HET HET BETT HETT BET BETT HETT BET HETT EHET HET BHET BET BETT
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
(B (RE)
(Note) (Note)
3,264 0 0 0 222 222 0 3,486 2,998 0 0 0 171 171 0 3,169
771 943 0 0 0 943 0 1,714 734 859 0 0 0 859 0 1,593
449 26 0 289 320 635 0 1,084 335 16 0 212 239 467 0 802
0 0 0 163 0 163 0 163 0 0 0 126 0 126 0 126
181 21 10 1 369 401 97) 485 152 11 6 16 309 342 (71) 423
264 0 0 89 1 90 0 354 271 0 0 76 1 77 0 348
4,929 990 10 542 912 2,454 97) 7,286 4,490 886 6 430 720 2,042 (71) 6,461
3,083 494 16 60 166 736 (40) 3,779 2,650 385 13 150 142 690 (30) 3,310
95 23 0 0 0 23 0 118 94 24 0 1 1 26 0 120
147 16 1 69 0 86 0 233 117 14 1 0 1 16 0 133
110 1 1 6 22 30 (0] 139 99 1 0 4 19 24 0 123
345 30 1 41 140 212 (53) 504 300 31 1 30 101 163 (38) 425
648 39 4 104 92 239 0 887 659 42 4 96 62 204 0 863
157 14 0 30 200 244 3) 398 135 14 0 28 149 191 3) 323
0 0 0 0 32 32 0 32 0 0 0 0 23 23 0 23
4,585 617 23 310 652 1,602 97) 6,090 4,054 511 19 309 498 1,337 (71) 5,320
344 373 (13) 232 260 852 0 1,196 436 375 (13) 121 222 705 0 1,141
344 0 0 0 0 0 0 344 436 0 0 0 0 0 0 436
0 0 0 152 0 152 0 152 0 0 0 54 0 54 0 54
0 373 (13) 80 260 700 0 700 0 375 (13) 67 222 651 0 651
344 373 (13) 232 260 852 0 1,196 436 375 (13) 121 222 705 0 1,141

13
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(&

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT (CONT’D)

(b)  RERSYERBHS. (HEEstieE)

University Segment Expenditure (By accounting nature)

2024 2023
SEEZ SEEZ
X BB R
eS¢ Inter- eS¢ Inter-
RENES segment HEEE segment
UGC-Funded El=20-¢zp= ] Transaction st UGC- El=20 ¢zp= Gl Transaction BEET
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Funded Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
HE&RBZ BEEBEZ
FEEE FEEE
PEES BEES
Self-financing PTES) FrgERER HAEE) Self- PSS i iRskiES) HAtES)
CPEP Research Donation Other Nt financing Research Donation Other /Net
Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total CPEP Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
HET BET HET HET BET BHET BET HET BET BET HET HET BHET BET BET HET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
(D) (D)
(Note) (Note)
Bz (MfEE 3.5)
Expenditure (Note 3.5)
SR R E 2,722 374 14 44 114 546 0 3,268 2,412 320 11 46 93 470 0 2,382
Salaries and benefits
HAlEE 1,603 219 8 138 467 832 97) 2,338 1,383 167 7 146 365 685 (71) 1,997
Other operating expenses
TS R g 260 24 1 128 71 224 0 484 259 24 1 117 40 182 0 441
Depreciation and amortisation
RBESE 4,585 617 23 310 652 1,602 97) 6,090 4,054 511 19 309 498 1,337 (71) 5,320
Total Expenditure
o DENE G T AT R G -
Note: Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal rental transactions.
it - © FHS R B R B B R A R T TR BB TS IR R 8 9F BB A E T -
Remarks: Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the Si t of Rec ded Practice for the UGC-Funded Institutions and are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

BB R BB B REZa A 5 9755 ( LI RAG5 )

Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities (“the Guidelines”)

AR E G AT IET] ) FABLE > BT -

The University follows the Guidelines issued by the UGC to allocate their costs, which is summarised as follows:

LUTE R B T2 B R IR BT TR AT L P T3 A TR i

There should be no hidden subsidy to avoid dilution of UGC-funded resources and unfair competition with the private sector;

VRN i CT e = dtl e e T e e -

All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and borne by such activities;

FTETHES IR B A E EBI IR (PRGN ~ TR REGEREE) IR P ZEBIIE - (RE TGS PRI B R S E 8 75 -

All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which cannot be separately attributable to specific activities, are allocated as shared costs to UGC and non-UGC segments based on cost allocation methodologies set out in the Guidelines.

University Financial Statements 2023/24
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3.1

3.2

33

BURFR BN B
GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS AND GRANTS

POA G R (3 16)

UGC recurrent block grant (Note 16)

fEERK (3L 16)

Earmarked grants (Note 16)

BUNA Bt RS R (IFE 16)

Earmarked grants from government agencies (Note 16)
FesHEaR (M)

Matching grants (Note)

WgERCEEE (FFaE 16)

Research matching grants (Note 16)

AR R AE
Rates and government rent refunds

Wit . FRFEA o BRI F R B E A T B IR (20234F - i) -
Note : No matching grants were launched by the government for UGC funded activities during the year (2023 Nil).

FIEBIPEEBA
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

FIEMA

Interest income

HNHEEBBC EUIRZ MBS EE Z A FEZEE) ()

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note)

NP EE A 2 R IR Z B B Z R A

Investment income on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

AR N F 2 EE i

Funds distribution from an associate

WIZE : AR EE R R R 2 57 » AR e B -

Note : Amounts included realised / unrealised gain or loss and before deduction of fund management fee.

RN B AL A
AUXILIARY SERVICES AND OTHER INCOME

Student hostels
FHEULA

Rental income

B RS 2

Rental contribution from staff

MRAsWcEs ~ S E WA S HA B )

Services fees, workshop income and other sponsorships

THE"ER (MfEE 16)
Project sponsorships (Note 16)
FETHWA

Miscellaneous

15

2024 2023
HETT HETT
$million $million
2,566 2,418
360 295
474 388
0 0
39 20
47 48
3,486 3,169
2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
105 94
976 705
1 1
2 2
1,084 802
2024 2023
HETT HETT
$million $million
169 152
20 18
53 49
110 100
102 91
31 13
485 423

2023/24 FEFE R



34 WssE
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

BUNEBh R K
Government subventions and grants

e A UV EN i

Tuition, programs and other fees

FIEFOFRERA

Interest and net investment income

SRR

Donations and benefactions

BHEOIRTES R HAU A

Auxiliary services and other income

S HREEA S

Transfers from deferred capital funds

BUR BB 5K

Government subventions and grants

By LR HE A
Tuition, programs and other fees

R RFREWA

Interest and net investment income

SRR

Donations and benefactions

AR M A A

Auxiliary services and other income

S H IR A A

Transfers from deferred capital funds

2024
B V€
Revenue from contracts with customers
A IR R P e R E H A AR HagH
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from other
O . Total
point in time time sources
EH#TT E#TT H#TT HH#IT
$million $million $million $million
0 0 3,486 3,486
0 1,714 0 1,714
0 0 1,084 1,084
0 0 163 163
44 65 376 485
0 0 354 354
44 1,779 5,463 7,286
2023
HE AL
Revenue from contracts with customers
AHE— I RERERY B el e R EHAMAR U S “aA
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from other
RO . Total
point in time time sources
HETT HETT HET HET
$million $million $million $million
0 0 3,169 3,169
0 1,593 0 1,593
0 0 802 802
0 0 126 126
21 54 348 423
0 0 348 348
21 1,647 4,793 6,461

University Financial Statements 2023/24
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35 B
EXPENDITURE

HAEE HrE B
E g Other Depreciation
Salaries and Operating and [l
Benefits Expenses Amortisation Total
B&ETT BET HET BET
$million $million $million $million
(HF5E 3.6)
(Note 3.6)

£EFE / Year 2024
- BRI
Teaching, Learning and Research
BT 2,474 1,140 165 3,779

Teaching and research

e 60 57 1 118
Library

R AR R 86 128 19 233
Central computing facilities

HA B R AR S 102 36 1 139
Other academic services

N 2,722 1,361 186 4,269
Sub-total

e 34
Institutional Support

BT 263 236 5 504
Management and general

e KA e 187 409 291 887
Premises and related expenses

B R — B R 95 301 2 398
Student and general education services

HAtES) 1 31 0 32
Other activities

Nt 546 977 298 1,821
Sub-total

HEBHSZ 3,268 2,338 484 6,090
Total Expenditure

£EFE / Year 2023
BE - BGEHIR

Teaching, Learning and Research

BERAR 2,136 1,034 140 3,310
Teaching and research

e 61 58 1 120
Library

R 81 36 16 133
Central computing facilities

HA B R AR S 92 29 2 123
Other academic services

N 2,370 1,157 159 3,686
Sub-total

e 3T d
Institutional Support

BT 240 180 5 425
Management and general

e KA e 181 408 274 863
Premises and related expenses

B R — B R 90 230 3 323
Student and general education services

HAtES) 1 22 0 23
Other activities

/et 512 840 282 1,634
Sub-total

HapaL 2,882 1,997 441 5,320
Total Expenditure

Hrs R RS R B S BERCR AR B T IS (o 2 Rt — (BT = E T (20234 + —&/\TIUEEIT) -
Included in salaries and benefits are the University’s contributions towards defined contribution retirement benefits schemes totalling $193 million
(2023: $184 million).

17 2023/24 FEFE R



3.6 HAEESHIT
ANALYSIS OF OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

R~ BBl KT

Teaching, Learning and Research

—ROMAE [ BERRFTEA /s

General office / teaching and research expense / equipment

bFeA B E:
Postgraduate studentships

] =5 B R BT
Library books and periodicals

B ER

Management and General

RERAWER

Premises and Related Expenses

NI TER RS

Utilities, cleaning and security service expenses

e epbrig [ /NUTRE

Repair and maintenance / minor works

7= et

Rates and government rent

—RIRAET /3%l /PR

General office expenses / equipment / property insurance

B4 R RBFERE

Student and General Education Services

B BB
Scholarships and bursary

(G

Residence halls

ERAETRE) | B AR R LR

Student activities / medical and dental care for students

—RIR AN EEH] / atf

General office expenses / equipment

HAEE)
Other Activities

University Financial Statements 2023/24 18

2024
BHET

$million

764

546

51

2023
BHETT

$million

1,361

236

586

520

51

189

114

59

47

1,157

180

409

204

106

62

36

122

109

55

15

408

301

31

2,338

100

73

46

11

230

22

1,997




L ONEE G|
REMUNERATION OF HIGHER PAID STAFF

BTHH
Number of Employees
2024 2023

FHEE

Annual Equivalent Remuneration

HKS$ 1,800,001 - 1,950,000 73 56
HKS$ 1,950,001 - 2,100,000 49 60
HKS$ 2,100,001 - 2,250,000 55 63
HKS$ 2,250,001 - 2,400,000 44 41
HKS$ 2,400,001 - 2,550,000 36 29
HKS$ 2,550,001 - 2,700,000 26 25
HKS$ 2,700,001 - 2,850,000 21 22
HKS$ 2,850,001 - 3,000,000 19 6
HKS$ 3,000,001 - 3,150,000 12 13
HKS$ 3,150,001 - 3,300,000 9 10
HKS$ 3,300,001 - 3,450,000 12 7
HKS$ 3,450,001 - 3,600,000 5 11
HKS$ 3,600,001 - 3,750,000 6 2
HKS$ 3,750,001 - 3,900,000 9 2
HKS$ 3,900,001 - 4,050,000 2 2
HKS$ 4,050,001 - 4,200,000 3 5
HKS$ 4,200,001 - 4,350,000 6 3
HK$ 4,350,001 - 4,500,000 2 4
HKS$ 4,500,001 - 4,650,000 4 0
HK$ 4,650,001 - 4,800,000 1 0
HKS$ 4,800,001 - 4,950,000 0 5
HK$ 4,950,001 - 5,100,000 2 0
HKS$ 5,100,001 - 5,250,000 2 0
HK$ 5,250,001 - 5,400,000 1 1
HKS$ 5,400,001 - 5,550,000 2 0
HK$ 6,000,001 - 6,150,000 0 1
HKS$ 7,050,001 - 7,200,000 1 0

FriFEEERrT ~ e ~ BIKEA I~ XEHL BN ~ [FEREMER - FEAEHE
EEE B E R B ) T BT 2 ) 1 [ e i B e fE R A= AR [ F T
Remuneration includes salaries, gratuities, contributions to retirement schemes, consultancy fees paid by
the University, housing and other benefits. For staff who are provided with quarters, their housing benefits
are calculated by reference to the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department of the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

A
TAX

REFFEIE (FBGRET) 56 88 M HUEERR BT » IR RBIE A -

No tax is provided for operations of the University that meet the exemption criteria under
Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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6.

ik ~ B RERHE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B
COST

2022457 H 1 H 2 456k
Balance as at 1 July 2022

NE
Additions
e
Transfers
LR
Disposals

202346 H30H &7 H 1H Z 4565
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

NE
Additions
et
Transfers
R
Disposals

20244F6 H30H 2 &tk
Balance as at 30 June 2024

BT
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

2022457 H 1 H 2 456k
Balance as at 1 July 2022

RS R
Charge for the year
ik

Disposals

202346 H30H K7 H 1H Z 4565
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

RS E T
Charge for the year
ik

Disposals

20244F6 H30H 2 &tk
Balance as at 30 June 2024

FREFE
NET BOOK VALUE

20244F6 H30H 2 &tk
Balance as at 30 June 2024

20234F6 H30H &tk
Balance as at 30 June 2023

University Financial Statements 2023/24

BTESE - RBI%
RS
Building
improvements,
EETE major equipment Y&

B Construction and services Fixtures and st

Buildings in progress systems equipment Total

BET HETL HEJTL HETL HET

$million $million $million $million $million

7,094 697 1,792 2,488 12,071
7 643 9 182 841
0 (415) 415 0 0
0 0 0 (138) (138)
7,101 925 2,216 2,532 12,774
1 788 3 455 1,247
0 (216) 216 0 0
0 0 0 (105) (105)
7,102 1,497 2,435 2,882 13,916
2,912 0 354 2,035 5,301
142 0 99 182 423
0 0 0 (138) (138)
3,054 0 453 2,079 5,586
143 0 118 206 467
0 0 0 (105) (105)
3,197 0 571 2,180 5,948
3,905 1,497 1,864 702 7,968
4,047 925 1,763 453 7,188
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Ik ~ MR et (80
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

RELEEFENEELN T AEZ T EERIIITHRE ( "TEFENE ) ) BurEaeetiasttd - B
+ )\ E2047THF6H30H -

The University campus is situated on approximately 60 hectares of land in Sai Kung under lease from the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) at a nominal rent for 58 years
through 30 June 2047.

EARFEBUFESENH M T RE—B AR ERY = T E S F IRk 2 Lt e R B — B2 g 2
s BRI > 2062212 H20H 1 -

A piece of land situated in Tseung Kwan O of approximately 3,490 square metres was granted to the
University by the Government of the HKSAR at a nominal rent for the construction of a student hostel for a
lease of 50 years up to 20 December 2062.

DLEZYE ~ a8 Rkt A at (R AR IRITEE 20T -

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as follows:

i S5 S04

Buildings 50 years

TETFEEE ~ KRB R i 40 204

Building improvements, major equipment and services 20 years

systems

EEN &L HEFRIEUZE A4 DI E Rt

Fixtures and equipment Shorter of the projects lives or 4-10
years
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7. EYEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- EAe

Computer software
BHET

$million

A
COST

202257 A1 H 2 4564 128
Balance as at 1 July 2022

NE 10
Additions

20234£6 308 K7 1 2 4665 138
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

NE
Additions 7

202446 H30H 2 4568 145
Balance as at 30 June 2024

%‘ N
AMORTISATION

202257 A1 H 2 4564 112
Balance as at 1 July 2022

AT 10

Amortisation charge for the year

202346 A30H K7 H 1 H 2 4564 122
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

AERE R #H 8

Amortisation charge for the year

202446 H30H 2 4568 130
Balance as at 30 June 2024

FRENFE
NET BOOK VALUE

20244F-6 H30H >~ 4564 15
Balance as at 30 June 2024

202346 H30H 4568 16
Balance as at 30 June 2023

R B E AR 25 % T R

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis at 25% per annum.
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HE

Leases

2024 2023
HET BHET

$million $million

EFREE

Right-of-use assets

=5

84 6

Buildings

THEAE

Lease liabilities

BT A b 9 6
Current lease liabilities

e E Al 72 0

Non-current lease liabilities

81 6

PAEEA - W (RS By \ T T (20234F 1 k) -
Additions to the right-to-use assets for the year ended 30 June 2024 were $87 million (2023: Nil).

P TT R -

The lease liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

A T F A A R R ET Y 28

Amounts related to leases recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

e 9 8
Depreciation

e 2 0

Finance cost

A BRI FRIBE 2 10 1

Expenses relating to short-term leases

21 9

REAE Ry KA HIRE EUES) R A AR

The University’s leasing activities as lessee and how these are accounted for

REFARAREYE - HAGH—RE—ZEINENEEHRR - ALl S aEE SSRGS I RIE S HAMRAVEEERE - REEHER
46 HEHE B A G R E TS - TERZ (E R AR - WERE AR PR - THE R s B (A R 23 - Al
EEESGREE B IME AR -

The University leases various buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 4 years. Some leases include an
option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. The University assess at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any onerous covenants. Leased assets will not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

REEEIE AN A ERIR

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
TH1HZ 46k 6 15
Balance as at 1 July
NE 79 0
Addition
FEB EREERA 2 0
Non-cash finance cost
SATHE AR (6) ©
Payment of lease liabilities
6 H30H 2 456% 81 6

Balance as at 30 June

23 2023/24 FEFE R



9. FEMBHERE
FINANCIAL ASSETS RELATING TO INVESTMENTS

S %

Equity securities
LR - $ETE
Listed equity securities, at market value
I TR - EPE (MR 2)

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value (Note a)

NHEEAERREY

Presentation in the balance sheet

A HE BB A I IR B &

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

N FEBEAICGURZ MBS EE (EEb)

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note b)

el 2 s

Listed equity funds
Ik iR
Unlisted equity funds

rE R AR
Listed fixed income funds

Ik BT R AR

Unlisted fixed income funds

I LT EYESE

Unlisted real assets funds
EIS e TE i S

Unlisted hedge funds
FELETRARE

Unlisted private investments

T R

Listed convertible bonds

Pl =80 AR F DB TR FRIT R BRAL

2024 2023
HEL HET
$million $million
16 17
530 403
546 420
546 420
447 619
3,838 3,381
2,196 829
1,476 2,224
984 835
1,468 1,245
1,065 962
18 17
11,492 10,112

The above three categories of financial assets are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

Wizt

Notes :

(@)  ZVFIETGZERATHT S G ES LR S I B 1175 (G A A B R BT T ~ T B F s 7 5 e T B

The fair value was determined by reference to the recent transaction price, and financial models based on discounted cash flow analysis, earnings

multiple and net equity method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

(b)  ZVFIET GBI EE TG A T

The fair value was determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets or by fund managers.
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10. HENBHELE
INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2024 2023
BET a8t
$million $million
FE M AR A E 9 9
Unlisted shares, at cost
BAER
ESt Proportion of
Rt R R B M R Nominal Value of
BEAEZE Form of Place of Issued Capital AR
Name of Business Incorporation Directly Held by Class of FEUEE)
Associate Structure and Operation the University Shares Held Principal Activity
GRS E=E SEYN: A g A RAEAIE 33% VN 2N PR - BEERAE - 2t
PRI E H RS - Bl S EEA
BRATEEA -
PKU-HKUST Institutional People’s Republic Capital To engage in technology
Shenzhen-Hong Organization of China Contribution commercialization, incubation of start-
Kong up companies, provision of research
Institution and technology management services,

training of senior management and
administrative executives.
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11. FERNEAE
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2024 2023
BHET BET
$million $million
FE LA E 21 21
Unlisted shares, at cost
AR
LS / ER Proportion of
Place / Country Nominal Value
@ aE of of Issued / Registered Capital FEEH
Subsidiary Incorporation Held by the University Principal Activity
H#RE Bk i)
Direct Indirect
AR RO S A IR A E] A 100% - ENEE]
HKUST  College of Lifelong Hong Kong Dormant
Learning Limited
FHRAMEAIRAE wH 100% - FiED)
HKUST Properties Limited Hong Kong Dormant
Redbird Innovation Fund Limited HiE - E TEEHAEYE - REEFIR T EE) -
Hong Kong Note To engage in other professional, scientific and technical
activities.
EAFIRHIRSAIR AT i 100% - FENEERFRL=AMNME - BUTRRHRATREEL
Hong Kong University of Science Hong Kong ERETHEGE ~ S - Fr AL - PEEE LR
and Technology R and D HEWFE R RS -
Corporation Limited To engage in technology commercialisation including
industrial contracting, licensing, incubation of start-up
JEINE BRI AR AT chE R LA - 100% companies, property management and research and
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s technical services, especially in Hong Kong and the
(Guangzhou) Limited Republic of Pearl River Delta Area.
China
HRLRHZEREE CRIID AIRAHE g AR IEAIE - 100%
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s
(Shenzhen) Limited Republic of
China
BN B AR E IR TE b e N RALFIE - 100% ILRBRINFED » BOIRFHCAN K - UK SRS
Guangzhou HKUST Fok Ying Tung People’s EB L ARERT AEIWHE  RERERE KB B R
Research Institute Republic of EAFTBH#IVEHEREEAE » DUREEA BFRIRHEAA 1Y
China £ -
Station in Guangzhou (Nansha), to engage in technology
innovation and development as well as entrepreneurship
activities including startup incubation, and
commercialisation of technologies developed in Clear
Water Bay and Nansha campuses, as well as training of
management and technology personnel.
BRI BRI 7l e\ RALAIE 100% - LR BN REAENHATEGE ~ 553l - BHSE ~ BHE
The HKUST Shenzhen Research Institute People’s RS A -
Republic of Station in Shenzhen, to facilitate the University’s
China education, training, research, technology development
and entrepreneurship activities in the Mainland.
TR S A 5 AR 7ERE S\ R 100% - SRR - GBIREHE PR 55l BHTE
HKUST Shenzhen — Hong Kong People’s ~ RHRHE R AES -
Collaborative Innovation Research Republic of Station in Shenzhen Futian District, to facilitate the
Institute China University’s education, training, research, technology
development and entrepreneurship activities in the
Mainland.

B EATRIERAWAT » ADLHEREA -

Note: This company is limited by gurantee without share capital
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12.

FEWRRRK R TR
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2024 2023
BHETT BHETT
$million $million

JEUTHERK 686 513
Accounts receivable
TR RO R4 63 116
Prepayments and deposits
JELSI > EIEH 129 121
Amounts due from subsidiaries

878 750

FEELSCRFT 8 23 Bl A 5 RS, SR RO i B A & 2 T B -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are interest free, unsecured and are payable on demand.

RETERET BRSNS 9 95V(ET77% - DUBCRY £ A THIAR EE T S 1aHHE -
The University applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach using a lifetime expected loss allowance
to measure loss allowance of accounts receivable.

Foat BTRIME EEHE - EUCRE S EE SRR R N E 4 - T ER R A
FIFRIE(S BERSIRG R - Wl ZBEOR N ZRAYE TS ATE I ER 2 R TR i TR (HEEA
) © [R20244E6 30H - SN THIIESRIAEA - MFEMELCREEHRRE R - ARE R 4
ERFFA (T -

To measure the expected credit losses, account receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are estimated based on the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced, adjusted with the expected change between
current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors, if material. As at 30 June
2024, no loss allowance is required on these accounts receivable as the expected credit losses are
immaterial. The University does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RS B FEYSU R AR S R ] B0 - TR AT A — AR PAIUAE] - TSRO IR PR AT — SR R Ry il
% o

The majority of accounts receivable are with no fixed terms of payment and are expected to be
recoverable within one year. Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one
year.

FEWOIRRN ~ TR0 R & DB T e 3E T R BB -
The accounts receivable and prepayments and deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
United States Dollars.
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13.  BRBRIRITEK
CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

JEEHA H e =8 H 2 E R
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months

TEE Y

Current portion

FEFRENEL Y

Non-Current portion

W NERKRE
Cash and cash equivalents

JFEIHE B =6 B 3L T ZE

Bank deposits with original maturity within three months

W B R TES BR
Cash at banks and in hand

L
Total

Bl RSRITAR DL T F I R BT

Cash and deposits with banks are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars 7T
United States Dollars 357

Renminbi NG
Euro Bt
Pounds Sterling JgH
Others Htr,
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2024 2023
HET BHETT
$million $million
1,699 2,272
0 0
1,699 2,272
796 1,037
72 92
868 1,129
2,567 3,401
2,382 2,965
92 346
37 32
19 32
33 10
4 16
2,567 3,401




14.

15.

FERTRRAR R T B2
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2024
HETT
$million

aaE (D) 475
Contract liabilities (Note)
JERFRRO BT 561
Accounts payable and accruals
FEATH A JlRH 1
Amount due to a subsidiary

1,037

FEAIIRRR e MBS T2 FH LUB T R B -

The accounts payable and accruals are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Wit -
Note :

2023
HEJT

$million

455

501

957

GHARE (B FUGK -~ RIEWA) TR EETR (EEAATIRTERE st - It T AT (20234 HER

THEET) SYABEHENHE SRR -

The contract liabilities for receipts in advance and deferred revenue are recognised as revenue in the periods when
the performance obligations are fulfilled. $475 million (2023: $455 million) contract liabilities are expected to be

recognised as income within one year.

EFIEE A G IR ENEE SRR N Bl 453
Revenue recognised during the year that was

included in the contract liability balance at the

beginning of the years

BUB R ET5E
PROVISION FOR STAFF BENEFITS

2024
HETT
$million
&I 131
Gratuities
AU s HoAth 99
Leave pay and others
230
JERFRA
Payable:
—FN 179
Within 1 year
—H& 51
After 1 year
230

29

463

2023
HEIT
$million
107

98

205

167

38

205
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16. MEIEHEE
DEFERRED INCOME

20227 H 1 H 2 458%
Balance as at 1 July 2022

B/ e 7R

Amount received / receivable

stAZmE G (i 3.1/3.3/19)
Credited to statement of comprehensive
income (Notes 3.1/3.3/19)

EERIEE AR S (MR 17)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 17)

20234E6 H30H K7 H 1 H 2 &6k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

B/ e FOR

Amount received / receivable

AR LR (i 3.1/3.3/19)
Credited to statement of comprehensive
income (Notes 3.1/3.3/19)

EERIEE ARS (ML 17)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 17)

202446 H30H 2 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

TRHHEREAE
To be recognised

202346 H30H Z 4E6R
Balance as at 30 June 2023

ik

In one year

—iER

After one year

202446 H30H 2 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

—4Ep

In one year

—iER

After one year

FE RIERORERER (WIEE 19 ) -

BURA B
) pHEEEEER  HEEX
way | R Bk Earmarked
BB UGC Earmarked  Grants from HEBH
UGC Block Grants/ Research ~ Government Project Fi=20d &zt
Grant Matching Grants Agencies Sponsorships Donation Total
EET EH#T BET HET BET EET
$million $million $million $million $million $million
0 1,612 375 182 666 2,835
2,538 573 426 92 425 4,054
(&)
(Note)
(2,418) (315) (388) ©1) (123) (3,335)
(120) (523) (10) (0) ©25) (698)
0 1,347 403 163 943 2,856
2,685 700 373 114 280 4,152
(&)
(Note)
(2,566) (399) (@74) (102) (102) (3.,643)
(119) (670) ) 33) (236) (1,062)
0 978 298 142 885 2,303
0 1,023 270 163 789 2,245
0 324 133 0 154 611
0 1,347 403 163 943 2,856
0 575 239 160 712 1,686
0 403 59 0 155 617
0 978 298 160 867 2,303

Note: The amounts were from pledged donations (Note 19).

24

Courtesy acknowledgement

HE 2024 1F6 /7 30 H 1L F/EHTHT ETEHE BB TERG B 2 5
Donations for the year ended 30 June 2024 included approximately $79.9 million (2023: $26.2 million) received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club

Charities Trust.
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17.

BERAEE
DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS

202247 H 1 H Z &g
Balance as at 1 July 2022

HERREYZE - 155 K i RIS 2 i BRI (I3 16)
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 16)

MHETITEE R sH 2 PO R 2 s R
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to statement of
comprehensive income

202346 H30H K 7H 1 HZ &56%
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

HERREYIFE - He8 Sk f K BRI 2 FOREHs B R s (Ff&E 16)
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 16)

ME T ES R 2 ORISR 2 UG R
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to statement of
comprehensive income

202446 H30H 456k
Balance as at 30 June 2024

31

BET

$million

4,813

698

(348)

5,163

1,062

(354)

5,871

2023/24 FEFE R



18. BHEGES  REMESREMES
UGC FUNDS, RESTRICTED FUNDS AND OTHER FUNDS

EEES RS HitrE S
UGC Funds Restricted Funds Other Funds
WATEEE
BHEA
5 RZ AT
HEEALEEE
—HR HHIREE Financial
E2deai BeE At BriEnk Assets at
Generaland  Research Matching Grants ERES eI BAES JEFEE IR FVOCI BEAES
Development Projects and  BHAES it Capital /et WAHESE  Designated Capital /et Unspecified  Revaluation Capital HAth /et #st
Reserve Others Endowments Others Funds Sub-total Endowments  Donations Funds Sub-total Donations Reserve Funds Others Sub-total Total
HETT BETT HETT BETT BHETT HETT HETT BHETT BETT BHET BET BHET EHET BETT BETT BETT
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
20224E7TH1H 2 456k 1,623 412 510 1,304 0 3,849 1,688 147 9 1,844 287 406 1,964 3,248 5,905 11,598
Balance as at 1 July 2022
KRR (518D 480 (116) 22 50 0 436 72 (18) 0 54 67 0 0 584 651 1,141
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year
N AR B B A 2 TR SRR RS 25 R T R 2 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 @) 0 0 @ 2)
Unrealised loss on equity securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income
e/ (2) 548 0 0 %) (43) 48 0 2) 2 0 0 37 0 20 57 0 0
Transfer from / (to) capital funds
S b (114) 114 0 0 0 0 53 4 0 57 0 0 0 (57) 57) 0
Inter-fund transfer
202346 H30H K 7H | H 2 456% 1,989 410 527 1,311 48 4,285 1,811 135 9 1,955 391 404 1,984 3,718 6,497 12,737
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
KRR (518D 397 (136) 26 57 0 344 169 17 0 152 80 0 0 620 700 1,196
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year
N HE B B A 2 R TR B RS 5 R B R 2 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 126 0 0 126 126
Unrealised income on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income
e/ () EfHEe 0 0 0 (118) 118 0 3 0 3) 0 39 0 (44) 5 0 0
Transfer from / (to) capital funds
B (89) 89 0 0 0 0 (68) 73 0 5 0 0 0 %) %) 0
Inter-fund transfer
202446 H30H Z 456% 2,297 363 553 1,250 166 4,629 1,915 191 6 2,112 510 530 1,940 4,338 7,318 14,059
Balance as at 30 June 2024
bz -
Notes:

(a) —REFBREEES HARDHZBEGRERN - PREEI CEBRE A =0 S50 n SRR E N — (SRR — Mk 3 R A R S A R DI RS A% 2 BB 20% Bl o e — AR R 3 I A AR S KA R Z S e B I B B HRE T HE S -
2022-25 = FFE IR SRAF £52024-25
General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC Block Grants. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% of the University’s approved Block Grants for that funding period.
Should the balance of the GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess amount is refundable to the UGC. The last year of 2022-25 triennium was 2024-25.

(b) BT B Rt Rl 5 Bog & R BRSOV EAIRIE B SRS B AT TIRES -
Research Projects and Others represent UGC Block Grant set aside for individual research projects and start-up fund to new faculty members to support their research work.
(o) ECHHESKRZ0A GIUHBNGTEIZ Aaibts - IBZEEGRMIIRG] - AR ANEE GHiEN 25D -
Matching Grants represent unspent funds from UGC’s Matching Grant Schemes. According to the rules and regulations promulgated by the UGC, these funds have to be used for activities within UGC ambit.
(d) WIARESEARERBHENG E 1 BRI A SR B R H DU A U 5 SR KRB e TG ) -
Endowments represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support designated activities of the University.
(o) FEHFRUEIEHHNAAEREED) - FMEBIEE (TSN RS -
Designated Donations represent funds earmarked for specific activities, programs or projects of the University, other than for construction of buildings.
(D BAEEGWYEE - Has Rkt R BISEE ZIRENFE - RN AR CHEE R A BUR B SR -
Capital Funds represent the net book value of property, plant and equipment as well as computer software which are acquired with recognised but unspent Government grants or donations or other income retained in the fund balances.

(2) FEFETEHRK Fo JEd E LRIl AR -

Unspecified Donations represent general donations without donor-specified purposes.

(h) EAHEEBEMSEBRETT RV REEE AR B PR ERHAT UGS PRI B & 7 2 A T S Bl 4 7 R R -
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) Revaluation Reserve represents the fair value gain or loss of financial assets at FVOCI.
() HEArEEAR B A RS -

Other Funds represent funds generated from self-financing activities.

3 2023/24 HEFERERI S AR




19.

AEEITK

PLEDGED DONATIONS
2024 2023

HET HET

$million $million
NAERVEE ST wd ¢ 7| 639 650
Outstanding amount as at 1 July
T 2 ARGEIRC 764 417
New pledges
TEASE R EUCZ AR R T i B R (Ifak a) (61) 3)
Amount received during the year and recognised directly in statement of
comprehensive income (Note a)
AT U Z BRI AR ARTH (5L 16) (280) (425)
Amounts received during the year credited to deferred income (Note 16)
FEARFREEMCZ K (341) (428)
Total amount received during the year
26 H30H R EH 27 1,062 639
Outstanding amount as at 30 June
Wat Ca) -
Note (a):

2024 2023

HHUA EH#T BT
Donation Income Smillion Smillion
TERAFSE YT I 72 B AR = AR 135 61 3
Amount of pledged donations received during the year and recognised directly in
statement of comprehensive income
TEEIA UYL i FTR I L1 TR SE T o el AR GH 70 (Wt 16) 102 123
Amount of pledged donations initially credited to deferred income and
subsequently recognised in statement of comprehensive income during the year
(Note 16)
LR FSE LA i a8 Z IR (5 A 163 126
Total donation income recognised in statement of comprehensive income during
the year (page 5)

13 2003024 4R RS BR




20. HABEEEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

20.1 S£BTESE
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

MsEE

Financial assets

ARt B S EE

Financial assets at amortised cost

FES R8s 2~ =IROH

Amounts due from subsidiaries

FEWSHRRI R 44

Accounts receivable and deposits

JFEIH H =8 H 2 K

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months

W S R &

Cash and cash equivalents

A HEEBHA S EEY IR B & E

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A HEEBICGER Z M EE

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

A

Financial liabilities

HAtFE A IR Z B AR

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

HEAMA

Lease liabilities

AR st e A

Accounts payable and accruals

A B el 2 BIRKIH

Amount due to a subsidiary

University Financial Statements 2023/24 34

2024 2023
BHET BHETT
$million $million
129 121
694 516
1,699 2,272
868 1,129
546 420
11,492 10,112
15,428 14,570
81 6
486 440
1 1
568 447




20.

20.2

MEREREE ()

SR TRESZ R

AELESRZ SRR © aisEE (BRE
BERE ~ FIRE b R EAR R )~ (FE SRR E)
FAs e o KB L E R R S T
A HETHETIRIZR1T 5 LAY 52 B EL K 5 N2 S S S
LUREIAR BN B R E A R B E R (K -
REATECE TG 5 FtE 0 b e B 5 F o s
ZENERHIET AR -

(0) HTBERE

()

SRR EER - MR SR RS S 55
S BRI 5 [ B 1 A L B AR e e -
AREARZHIHIS G £ 2K A B AR A
Ak - ARBOREOERAES - 5 |
YA ~ BOTESE - RIE SOEHIER
o AREBHEA RIS B LU R A &
R BB E oy BR N o RIRHE R SR
TEII i SOREN B < © ANREMES RS H SRR
AL e E AR A - iR
EEEMER R E P ERTA -

SHE T #

RERA T 2 SN JE\ b 1 R P g A B
FITEHARE - HEPRETHEETT Y - KRB
TSR B S T HE R B b A2 2R J B K

RN S BB R SRR 8
b ISR N EZHER T B
$d o Pl G A Y B RS R R
FOE ThET - DR B TR -

202456 H30H - BT ~ 2T - AR

FM S EEHE N R E EEY R R

EEEY17.8% (20234 5522.5%) ~ 79.8% (202

3FEFT5.3%) ~ 0.2% (20234 550.2% ) Fe2.2%
(2023 552.0% ) -

NERIAREE R LI NIEEHE RV B A - HHRRY
SPCERRRALA S

20.
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35

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
University's overall risk management focuses on controlling
the impact arising from unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the University's financial performance by engaging external
professional advisors. The Administration of the University
assumes the day-to-day risk management responsibility and
monitors regularly the risk exposures of the University.

(a) Market risk

()

Market risk represents the risk that the value of
financial assets will decrease as a result of movements
in market variables such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and stock prices. The University
is exposed to market risk mainly through the
investment funds it holds. The University's
investments comprise equities, debt securities, real
assets investment funds, hedged funds, private
investments and fixed deposits. The investment
strategy of the University is to invest prudently in
order to preserve capital and achieve optimal risk
diversification while generating a stable return over
the long term and the required liquidity. The
University employs external professional advisors and
investment managers to manage a significant portion
of its investments, and delegates to the Finance Office
of the University to manage fixed deposits and some
of the fixed income instruments.

Foreign currency risk

The University is exposed to foreign currency risks
primarily arising from its United States dollars
(“USD”) denominated investments that are managed
by investment managers. As HKD is pegged to the
USD, the University considers the risk from
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and
USD to be insignificant.

Since currency movements tend to have a much
smaller impact on portfolio performance in the long
run, no hedging for non-USD currency exposure will
be arranged under normal circumstances. Such
currency exposure management policy is subject to
periodic review and hedging may be arranged when
situation warrants.

As at 30 June 2024, the percentages of financial
assets denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and other
currencies to total financial assets were 17.8% (2023:
22.5%), 79.8% (2023: 75.3%), 0.2% (2023: 0.2%)
and 2.2% (2023: 2.0%), respectively.

The University does not have material financial
liabilities denominated in foreign currency and
considers the related foreign exchange risk
immaterial.

2023/24 FEFE R



20.

20.2

MBEREE (&)

SHTEEEZ R (&)
(@) TWHEE (8
(i) FPEEE

(ifi)

(b)

REERRR 2 E IR (B P A Y
b o PRE Rk B A = (8 H 2+ 5 N E]
W FrRAH bR S o A R H Ok
Frfg  MRiTERRIR T2 R T (5
B REMEE2044E60 H30H (LR Btk G
B AT EH I ETT (

023F R —TRNHLTHETT) -

V-l

RERHIE 2 5 R (B b T Ak 1 e A
FTEEA I RS - SRR R R ) A
BN EITS ~ 173 R AESHIN )T E A E B
° JR20245E6 H30H - EERS BT NERS %
FEHMFrA SRR A EAEIL T - AREE
202456 H30H LR B bR a0, Rk
HREE-TTET QOBFERLR/ TN
HATHETT) -

ERESE

NEEZ AR R N EEH S - EH
TR~ FEWHRRR ~ 12 B AT T B 2 s A
~ AN A HA 2 U PR 2 % A
FAg A HEE BB S -

REE 2 (FE G 2R HIEUTRK - INEEA
RN Z SRR TFRIE TR 098 S
E E AR A A B SRR LA H A -

s N B EIBR S ROE I SR IO SR
S EEE TRES S L E SR # T
U3 o SIS B 2 WIS AE ~ A THEE
B e E YR B E E R A HE
BB ECIR B B R R a4 e bl b

°

RENEREE P EEREE - NFES2E T
J5 o AISY R o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

(iii)

(b)

The University is exposed to interest rate risk in
relation to its fixed deposits and bond securities. As
the fixed deposits usually mature within three to
twelve months, the risk exposure is considered not
material. If bank deposit interest rates had been 50
basis points higher / lower, with all other variables
held constant, the University’s surplus for the year
ended 30 June 2024 would increase / decrease by
approximately $12.5 million (2023: $16.5 million).

Price risk

The University is mainly exposed to securities price
risk from its investments managed by investment
managers. Securities price risk is managed by
diversification of investments in different markets,
sectors and assets types. At 30 June 2024, if the
prices of the respective investments had been 5%
higher / lower, with all other variables held constant,
the University's surplus for the year ended 30 June
2024 would increase / decrease by approximately
$601.9 million (2023: $526.6 million).

Credit risk

The University's principal financial assets are cash

and cash equivalents, bank deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through income and expenditure.

The University's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its accounts receivable. The amounts represented in
the balance sheet are net of loss allowance, estimated
by the University's management based on past
experience and their assessment of the current
economy.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are
placed with counterparties with credit-ratings of
investment grade or above assigned by international
credit-ratings agencies. Financial assets at amortised
cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through income and expenditure are rated
investment grade or above.

The University has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.



20.

20.2

20.3

MERREE (8
SRTRESY Bk (8)

b EEERE (&)

HETEIR TN S H RREE TA B S T
ERAE BT - MIARE FER GRS R
NEEARRATREEIREE -

JR202456 H30H - REMRIEE B 4
SIS 9 SRtfERd A AR EE A TR -

(©) FREETESE

AREHIRE M A EEINH BERE HR T
AW - SRR ARG E  AREEER
BB & B e I H R TE R A » A
JERF FH R -

BAEE

REHESRBE GRS  [REIMEE R HA A
MR > RS R R SR E HEVIMERIL it
FURRHTEEI8 - REZHY B R IR e Sk DIiC &
REERAE R A8 R - KB AR SR A
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B HAAGEREAL (F PR -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b)

(©

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The University's maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations as at balance sheet date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
balance sheet.

The University assessed that there is no significant
loss allowance in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 30
June 2024.

Liquidity risk

Most of the University's liabilities are due within
twelve months from the respective balance sheet date.
To manage the liquidity risk, the University monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents to
fulfill the normal liquidity needs.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The University's funds consist of UGC funds, restricted
funds and other funds, which are set up for various
designated purposes as described in note 18. It is the
University's objective to maintain sufficient funds to
support the University's current and future operating
expenditure requirements. The University's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The University manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities.

2023/24 FEFE R



20. MBERER (8D
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

204 APEER
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

(a)  BIAPESRASBIERE

Financial assets carried at fair value

LU FIR i & A R PEA B2 ARSI TR 3 2 THIAFEH RS

The tables below provide an analysis of the University’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, grouped by level of the

following fair value measurement:

o MHEEENKGMEEERTSZ®E (B0

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

o BRTHE-FHAEEIEEN  ZHEENAMS TEEER  WAERSHEE (255

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2)

o HENAMTIHKE TR SEE 2T (B=F400

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EH#TT EH#TT EHETT BT
$million $million $million $million
2202446 H30H
As at 30 June 2024
BN HEBEBIC IR Z R AR
Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure
- kiR 447 0 0 447
Listed equity funds
- I bR A 2,665 1,173 0 3,838
Unlisted equity funds
- hRWEEUR A 2,196 0 0 2,196
Listed fixed income funds
- JE b iEE AR S 298 593 585 1,476
Unlisted fixed income funds
- kL EYIESE 0 644 340 984
Unlisted real assets funds
- JEREIRESE 0 1,468 0 1,468
Unlisted hedge funds
- JEEMRAKE 0 0 1,065 1,065
Unlisted private investments
- b R 18 0 0 18
Listed convertible bonds
5,624 3,878 1,990 11,492
A PE BB EA R R T B B
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- iR 2 16 0 0 16
Listed equity securities
- LWl 0 0 530 530
Unlisted equity securities
16 0 530 546
5,640 3,878 2,520 12,038
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20.4

MBEREHE (&)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

APEMGE (8D
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONT’D)

() DIAPEFRRNSHMEE (8D

Financial assets carried at fair value (Cont’d)

FER BN R Hast
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EHHETT HETT HET HET
$million $million $million Smillion
22023465300
As at 30 June 2023
AT EBICEUIR Z W ¥
Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure
- Ealiliitg; 2n %A 619 0 0 619
Listed equity funds
- EIS ;2253 2,412 969 0 3,381
Unlisted equity funds
- ETTEE W AR 829 0 0 829
Listed fixed income funds
- I b EE AR S 1,185 541 498 2,224
Unlisted fixed income funds
- e YIS 0 594 241 835
Unlisted real assets funds
- FE LS 0 1,245 0 1,245
Unlisted hedge funds
- EI N 0 0 962 962
Unlisted private investments
- b T 17 0 0 17
Listed convertible bonds
5,062 3,349 1,701 10,112
B B HA S GRS SR 2 W
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- b iR R 7 17 0 0 17
Listed equity securities
- I LR 7 0 0 403 403
Unlisted equity securities
17 0 403 420
5,079 3,349 2,104 10,532

JEEE SRS LRI TR 2 B 1 St e (BRI » 6 AR R 2 BT L -

The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 2 is determined by reference to the prices at the reporting date provided by the investment
managers and have been translated using the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

B 14 58 =AU LAY A THET 925 BTy 5 (ks DU 2 U e e T 55 (B (G DABR St BT84 ~ R RS ISRV 2 ) s B P R T R

The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 3 is determined by reference to the recent transaction price, and financial models based on
discounted cash flow analysis, earnings multiple and net equity method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

BRI TR AR RS R H R R TR A I3k B A RIGR -

Level 3 financial instruments include investments in unlisted companies by the University and its investment managers.

REEPY > RS T R A ERT A ] o AR A A A SR NS = Y AT ER T R A -

During the year, there was no transfer of the financial investments between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
classifications.

HOANHESEZ =SB TR RN ST

The movements of the Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
HET HET
$million $million
THH 2 656 2,104 1,841
Balance as at 1 July
WA 335 334
Acquisitions
R (147) (122)
Disposals
B AR R R RS 228 51
Net gains recognised in statement of comprehensive income
6H30H 458k 2,520 2,104
Balance as at 30 June
BT A S HEE R HAN 2 TR 2 05 R R 4R 127 0

Net gains for the year included in statement of comprehensive income,

under other comprehensive income

B AR R R E RO A Z T BRI 101 51
Net gains for the year included in statement of comprehensive income,

under interest and net investment income

39 2003024 4R RS BR



21, &

COMMITMENTS
2024 2023
BET BEET
$million $million
(a) BAEE
Capital Commitments
(1) DU BRI e hAE i A RIS, - BEES R R TR TV AR YE ¢
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
EFEL 1,642 1,537
Contracted for
[SEsedi JEILE S8 3,456 1,371
Authorised but not contracted for
5,098 2,908
(i)  DUN AR B R (E R A R B AR IR TR ARE
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of financial assets not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:
B4 1,270 1,227
Contracted for
HERHE 6,368 4,135
Total commitments
BIRARE T AR BT A
Funding support for the above outstanding capital commitments:
2024 2023
BET BEET
$million $million
TREREEAM B A &4
Amounts to be financed by University’s resources
—  EERARANEEREE S S 965 949
Amounts recognised as income and retained as UGC funds
— RETERAIM R e e E MR th i A 2,112 1,186
Other amounts representing restricted funds or other funds to be allocated
EMSHGIE S B IR AE Y 25 2 6 H 30 H 22 48 172 431
Amounts received and reflected as deferred income as at 30 June
FEGFUMAERGE BB 2,938 1,394
Amounts in respect of UGC grants approved but not yet received
BB RS 2 B8 181 175
Amounts pledged by donors
6,368 4,135
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22. REREGREIREGZEGRENER NS KRBITRS
UNIVERSITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2.1 EZEY
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

REE R A B & 2 B G SRR BRSSP E TR R T R (TR S 4 T R el A B A s -
No contract of significance to which the University was a party and in which a Council member or a Council Committee member
was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

222 MABEHRS
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AL > REHEST T THIERBB T35

During the year, the University entered into the following material related parties transactions:

2024 2023
\ET BET
$million $million
(a) [HBATE
Subsidiaries
) BB AEZ 5
Transactions with subsidiaries
AT A E 2 R E 15 23
Service fee paid to subsidiaries
15 23
F A SN Z T H A& RS 27 23
Overheads charged to subsidiaries
27 23
(i) FEUE A EIRCOH 129 121
Amounts due from subsidiaries
(i) FENHEAEROE 1 1

Amount due to a subsidiary

JEUS / FE(THT 8 A SRR RHEAT - REHFIE - $ZEORIE IR - BFCHT EREIEMTEE 12 R 14 24585 -
Amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. The balances are
included in Notes 12 and 14 respectively.
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22. REREGREMEGZEGRENERGOZESERMBIRS (8
UNIVERSITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

222 BABETIRS (80
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

2024 2023
BET BHET
$million $million

(b) BEAT
An Associate
TelvE A FIUEL Z i 2 2

Funds distribution from an associate

() COMEEREN — S AR THMANYEZEE AR ZME ()
Compensation of the key management personnel who have also
been included in Note 4 - Remuneration of Higher Paid Staff
(Note)

Fr K H A (R B AEA 76 65
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

BRI EF 7 7
Post employment benefits

83 72

il FHEETIA A RA TR ETEE - TR GIE R R AR 0 BB TEER + WA RASE R
51 R

Note: Key management personnel represent senior management of the University whose primary responsibilities include
the review and approval of major administrative policies affecting the University’s operations, and long-term plans
and strategies for the development of the University.

(d) REAN - BRITBIE R B TRFS - ARE R AR E G B S E § % B g B AR ARSI [ S (T 8 & R4
B R FIRB A TEWEUZ #7E - 1@ scH M (20234 @ f&) -
No remunerations, fees or other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any Council members or Council Committees
members (other than those executive members and elected staff members) in respect of their services to the University during
the year (2023: Nil).
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23. HAtigh
OTHER AGREEMENTS

(@

BRI SEET AR (B A
Agreements related to establishing the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou)

FA2018F12H21H - KRBT ARBUNFIBINKEZ BB - SEREARCRE (M) ( THERER (
B 5 ) o BILERER (BN BESKEREMNT ANRBUT - RERFTRERER (BN REES -

On 21 December 2018, the University signed agreements with the Guangzhou Municipal Government and Guangzhou
University (“GZU”) to establish Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou) (“HKUST (GZ)”).
The funding for the establishment of HKUST (GZ) is provided by Guangzhou Municipal Government. No financial
commitment is required from the University to fund HKUST (GZ).

REBLEINRE Z RIS R HEBl & (RACEAR DL - SEI7R sk BRI (BN AUREssTERRARRIAY &2 -
B WARIBES - IR % - ARB R RERGRABRI (B AUEREZE SR
WEHATAAI(E - FAERARYIATRIBASZ - BItL - BUERER (BN BYLHER R BRI &S & -
The arrangement between the University and GZU is a joint operation, where both parties account for their own assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in HKUST (GZ) as opposed to applying equity accounting.
Under the terms of the agreements, the University will not hold any assets or incur any liabilities, revenues or expenses
related to HKUST (GZ). Consequently, the arrangement with HKUST (GZ) has no impact on the financial results of
the University.

RERFEERA (B (RN ARBUNERSE 5 DS BN S B 8 R AR (B L IE

 BFEER IR IAZE AR B B ORI S » IBROBRER (B TRV B Hie - AEA KB E AR
B ERS - DA RS EER LAMHUZ T H ACHE BASE - 40T S M A B RS © AR B RERERUL
HAVHB&ER S R—EE T (20234 ZHET) » WL THBhIRE REMUA , - SR E g &
BEBIT - 12202456 H30H - 2 E BN A RBUF TR FHRVE SR8 A —E—T/VEETT (20234 =
BoTNEET) @ WEREEEABEETISS T IRERE, -

For the establishment of HKUST (GZ), the University received funding from Guangzhou Municipal Government to
support Guangzhou Pilot Scheme and other preparation work for HKUST (GZ), including but not limited to
postgraduate studentship and related teaching and learning expenditures, the salary costs of its staff who have been
involved in the work of HKUST (GZ), the direct operating costs incurred in Clear Water Bay campus as well as the
indirect costs such as centrally provided facilities and other support services which were charged in the form of
overhead recovery according to the University’s policy. The overhead recovery charged in current financial year was
$1 million (2023: $3 million), which was recorded as "Auxiliary Services and Other Income" under the UGC-funded
Activities. As at 30 June 2024, the unspent balance of funding from Guangzhou Municipal Government of $118
million (2023: $226 million) was recorded within "Deferred Income" in the University balance sheet.

INAFEEN > REBECERIR (BIN) T T THIEARARS |
During the year, the University entered into the following material transactions with HKUST (GZ):

2024 2023
BET BET
$million $million
BUERER (B 2385
Transactions with HKUST (GZ)
TAERER (B ZiseaFE 4 4
Research Collaboration fee paid to HKUST (GZ)
AR (BN T RgE i 3 0

Service fee charged to HKUST(GZ)
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23, HAis ()
OTHER AGREEMENTS (CON'T)

(b)  FHFAHKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS &z HKGAIH {77
Agreements related to HKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS and HKGAI

FANABEEREF P OEEERATBEE ( "B, ) MERERREZ— - BUNEERAIHEESE (11
TC, ) HEHInnoHKE&] » 5 b Kt FRAR AN ERIT o /sl S e T RIS R IR E - ST R R R
A E R E RS G -

As part of the Government of the HKSAR (the “Government”) vision for Hong Kong to be the hub for global research
collaboration, the Government set up the InnoHK initiative through the Innovation and Technology Commission
(“ITC”) that involves the establishment of world-class research clusters in the Hong Kong Science Park with research
laboratories set up by world renowned institutions and/or commercial entities to conduct collaborative research
projects.

RER B[ F3E] » BB B A S RHREA T (CHKSTP™) BRIk o Foir T TURIE(AIRA R » A fEn
oHKEF B ESBUFHERC R ETRIIED) - EVURIERAIRA F 03 A E B R IT IR L ARAE (¢
HKCeND”) - FAREREEEIE T OAIRAT (“HKCRC?) » RES A BLRAUHEH OAIRAE (“ACCES
S”) MIFBERAALEENREFOARAT (“HKGAD) » 4% ( "InnoHK AF], ) -

In response to the above, the University entered into agreements with the Government and the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (the “HKSTP”) and set up four entities limited by guarantee to carry out research
activities with funding support from the Government under the InnoHK initiative. The four entities are Hong Kong
Center for Neurodegenerative Diseases Limited (“HKCeND”), Hong Kong Center for Construction Robotics Limited
(“HKCRC”), AI Chip Center for Emerging Smart Systems Limited (“ACCESS”) and Hong Kong Generative Al
Research and Development Center Limited ("HKGAI") (collectively the "InnoHK Companies").

E R ELIERAIRA TR S - (ERBEBEUN X HKSTPETILAV RN - KRR g5 il ol
HIRELS - A HE A H S Inno HK A SRIRER M T2 B B - BRI ARERR S HRE A FIHI R -
Although the University is the sole member of these entities, the University has not consolidated the results of these
entities under the terms of the agreements entered into with the Government and the HKSTP, the University is not
exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable returns from its involvement with InnoHK
Companies.

AARFEREAN > REREEInnoHK A FIHE(T T NI RRIR S ¢

During the year, the University entered into the following material transactions with InnoHK Companies:

2024 2023
BET HETT

$million $million

() HilnnoHK /452 %5
Transactions with InnoHK Companies

InnoHK 2337 i 2 7 H 4L B 2 19
Overheads charged to InnoHK Companies

InnoHK /451 (2 % & 1E % Fi 5 12

Research Collaboration fee charged to InnoHK Companies

B &% InnoHK X & Z AHBARA 6 7
Cost Recovery for staff deployed to InnoHK Companies

RInnoHK /A F47H% 5 5 KI5 542 22

Purchase of goods and services on behalf of InnoHK Companies

(i) FEYInnoHK /3 FR0H 37 7
Amounts due from InnoHK Companies

(iii) 7 InnoHK /3 7] T 2 3

Receipt in advance from InnoHK Companies
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24,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the University makes
assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as risk adjustment to cash flows
or discount rates used, future changes in salaries
and future changes in prices affecting other costs.
The University's estimates and assumptions are
based on historical experience and expectations of
future events and are reviewed periodically. In
addition to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the University's accounting
policies.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of computer software

The University determines the estimated useful
lives for related depreciation charges for property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of computer
software. Management will revise the depreciation
or amortisation charges where useful lives are
different to previously estimated.

Valuation of investments

The fair values of financial instruments traded in
active markets are based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date. The fair values of
financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market are determined using established
valuation techniques. The University uses its
judgement to select valuation methods and pricing
sources to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Adoption of new / revised HKFRS

For the year ended 30 June 2024, the University
has adopted all the new and revised standards and
amendments to HKFRS that are effective for the
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and relevant to the operations of the
University.

The University has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these amendments and considered that
there was no significant impact on the University's
results and financial position nor any substantial
changes to the University’s accounting policies
and presentation of the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the
University are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Investment in an Associate

An associate is an entity over which the University
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Investments in associate are included in the
University's balance sheet and are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Investments in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the University has control. The
University controls an entity when the University
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the University
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs, net of the residual values, if any, over the
estimated useful lives. Depreciation is charged
from the month when the asset is ready for use.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss and is not depreciated
until completion of construction. Cost of
completed construction works is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss
arising from derecognition of an asset,
representing the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of that asset is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Intangible Assets

Computer software

Computer software costs are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software and are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation.

Amortisation of computer software is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives. Amortisation is charged from the month
when the asset is ready for use.

Computer software under development is not
amortised until ready for use.

Financial Assets
Classification

The University classifies its financial assets in
the following categories:

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through income and
expenditure), and

(b) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in income and
expenditure or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
University has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The University reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the University measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through income
and expenditure (“FVIE”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVIE are expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the University's business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the University
classifies its debt instruments:

(a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
interest and investment income using the
effective interest rate method.

(b) FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for sale, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment losses, interest
income using the effective interest rate
method and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to the statement of
comprehensive income and recognised in
interest and investment income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Measurement (Cont’d)

(c) FVIE: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVIE. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
FVIE is recognised and presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within
interest and investment income in the period

in which it arises.

Equity Instruments

The University subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the University’s
management has made an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, on derecognition of the
investment, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to income and
expenditure and any balance within other
comprehensive  income for these equity
investments is reclassified to other funds as a fund
movement. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the University’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVIE are recognised and presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within
interest and investment income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The University assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowances for expected credit losses. The
University measured the loss allowance for its
accounts receivables at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses. Appropriate
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits available on demand with an original
maturity of 3 months or less.

Accounts payable, accruals, deferred income
and contract liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Funds earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.
Funds received but not yet recognised as income
are recorded as deferred income.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from customers, where the
University has the unconditional right to
considerations before the goods or services are
delivered. They are released and revenues are
recognised when the performance obligations are
satisfied upon transferring of goods and services
to customers.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the University has
a present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the University will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured
at management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

2023/24 FEFE R
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the University reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Deferred Capital Funds

Deferred capital funds represent funds from
subventions and grants or donations spent by the
University on the purchase of property, plant and
equipment as well as intangible assets. These
funds are recognised as income in the statement of
comprehensive income to match against the
depreciation charges of the related asset items
over their estimated useful lives.

Recognition of Income

(@)

Government subventions and grants

Government subventions and grants are
recognised in  the  statement of
comprehensive income when there is
reasonable assurance that the University will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them; and that the subventions and grants
will be received.

Grants earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the
related expenses are incurred during the
reporting period.

Subvention and grants spent on capital
expenditure are initially recorded as deferred
capital funds and recognised as income to
match against the depreciation charges of
the related asset items over their estimated
useful lives.
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25.14 Recognition of Income (Cont’d)
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(b

(©

(d)

(e

Donations

Donations without conditions in cash or cash
equivalents or other investment instruments are
recognised as income when received or
receivable.  Outstanding pledges are not
recognised as income unless a legal obligation on
the donor can be established by the University.

Donations received with a specific purpose are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Tuition, programmes and other fees

Tuition, programmes and other fees are
recognised over time when the services are
rendered and the University's performance
provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the students. Tuition,
programmes and other fees recognised on an
accrual basis and unearned fees are included in
contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discount the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Research contract income

Income from contract research is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the University’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the
expenses incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

Licensing income

Licensing income is recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract period when a customer is
granted with a right to access the patents as it
exists  throughout the licence  period.
Alternatively, licensing income is recognised at a
single point in time upon delivery of the patents
when a customer is provided with a right to use
the patents as it exists at the point in time at
which the licence is granted.

2023/24 FEFE R
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University Financial Statements 2023/24

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the University.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities are measured at the net present value of
the remaining fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liabilities. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and lease interest expense. The lease interest
expense is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Lease liabilities are classified as non-current
liabilities unless payments are payable within 12
months from the balance sheet date.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the lease terms on a straight-line
basis. Payments associated with short-term leases
with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets are expensed on a straight-line
basis in the statement of comprehensive income.

Lease income from operating leases where the
University is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Retirement Benefits Costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contribution.

For long service payment ("LSP") obligation, the
University accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation
in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measured on a
net basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the University’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the balance sheet date.

Income and expenditure are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions);
and all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.
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25.

25.18

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Cost Allocation for UGC-funded and non-UGC
funded activities for segment reporting

In compiling the segment reporting for compliance
with the Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-
funded and non-UGC-funded Activities (“the
Guidelines™) effective from 1 July 2018, costs
associated with UGC activities, non-UGC
activities or shared activities are identified. Costs
directly attributable to UGC or non-UGC activities
are not subject to cost allocation. Shared costs are
allocated to UGC and non-UGC segments using
appropriate cost drivers including teaching credits
of UGC and non-UGC programmes, the number of
student Full Time Equivalents (FTE), floor area,
etc.. Costs funded by donations are regarded as
direct costs and reported under the Non-UGC
Segment.
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26.

EAHHERARAEIFER] ~ ST R B
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS PUBLISHED

THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

ARENR SIS R e T DU AR E i R A5 - W BLHIEE AR Z8ra ] A EE TR ~ (B8] etk

The University has not early adopted the following new standards, amendments, and interpretations which have been
issued and are relevant to its operations but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

EEGERE 198 (&3]
Amendments to HKAS 1

EEGEFERE 198 (&85
Amendments to HKAS 1

FAM RS 16 98 (B5T)
Amendments to HKFRS 16

EAGETERE TR
FARMFHRERERE 798 ((Z51)
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

EAREETREAE 21 98 (B57)
Amendments to HKAS 21

BB SRS 18 57
HKFRS 18

BB B 10 SR B G TAERIS 28 5

(&2T)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

U OR202455 1 H 1 H B bAR BdA 2 AR IR AR -

B R R B RS |

. o . age,s 1
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

R JeRmneal

Non-current liabilities with covenants '

G A

Lease liability in a sale and leaseback !
frErGR 2|
Supplier finance arrangements !

A= A R 2
Lack of exchangeability :

A AR 3

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements >
e 9 s A N e sy 4
EENHpE e e bR MNEERES0TE

Sale and Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture *

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

?jA2025%1 51 HELA & FAs 2 A FEHART A28 -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

IA202741 7 1 HEBAR FAA 2 A REHART A28 -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

s R -
Effective date to be determined.

EHEHRIER DL BT A 2 BRI BT R AR 2 B E R - (RO ST > St BORN MR

ST O E A -

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above new standards, amendments and interpretations on the
University’s financial statements. From the initial assessment, it is considered that there will be no significant impact to
the accounting policies or presentation of the financial statements.
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27. EHHEEY HRRERZHMER R
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB

271 BoREEEERGHE
UGC’S MATCHING GRANTS SCHEMES

TEHRAGIHETGTET - PR EaMa BRSBTS R BCEHERK - BCEHERK - HBRFATEROR S HATREN S s
Under UGC’s Matching Grant Schemes, qualified donations raised by institutions are matched by respective UGC grants in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the schemes. Details of the matching grants, related donations and expenditure are set out below respectively:

BEEEN TS Sl cpars i
UGC-funded Operations Self-financing Operations
IESHERK HoEHRK
Matching EECE Y FEEK Matching KA FrigHERK
Grant Matched Donations Grant Matched Donations
BET BET BHET BET
$million $million Smillion $million
202247 1 H Z 4568 1,790 1,586 24 21
Balance as at 1 July 2022
WA
Income
FEIR AR 0 0 0 0
Grants and Donations
fita={azic 148 169 3 0
Loss from Investments
148 169 3 0
Sz
Expenditure
HEHERER KbTST 12 38 0 1
Teaching and Research Enhancement
AR L KR TS 1 5 0 0
Academic Strength and Niche Area Development
R G R 45 8 0 0
Scholarships and Prizes
BhERSE: 0 1 0 0
Bursaries
kR 0 4 0 0
Student Development
TR — AR At 21 59 0 0
Management & General / Others
79 115 0 1
g (8) BAEE (48) 46 0 0
Transfer from / (to) capital funds
20234E6 H30H K& 7H 1 H 2 &tk 1,811 1,686 27 20
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
WA
Income
FEIR AR 0 0 0 0
Grants and Donations
fita el 190 225 4 0
Gain from Investments
190 225 4 0
SZHd
Expenditure
HEHERER RTST 15 32 0 1
Teaching and Research Enhancement
AR b KRR T S 2 2 0 0
Academic Strength and Niche Area Development
R G R 58 8 0 0
Scholarships and Prizes
BhERE 0 1 0 0
Bursaries
kiR 0 2 0 0
Student Development
TR — AR LAt 35 78 1 0
Management & General / Others
110 123 1 1
e/ () BFES (118) 53 0 0
Transfer from / (to) capital funds
202446 H30H 4565 1,773 1,841 30 19

Balance as at 30 June 2024
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27.

BERE  BERERZHMRREE (&)
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

27.2

BOR G ERG TR
UGC’S RESEARCH MATCHING GRANTS SCHEMES

TEHE GG T - BrRES SRS a I T iR et B AR IR 2 BCSHERK -

BFERCEEERK ~ AR TR SRR EIE Y B s T

Under UGC’s Research Matching Grant Schemes, qualified donations raised by institutions are matched by respective UGC grants in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the schemes. Details of the research matching grants, related donations and expenditure are set out below respectively:

2022477 1 H Z &tk
Balance as at 1 July 2022

WA

Income
BRRARK
Grants and Donations
A EF]
Gain from Investments

SZHY

Expenditure
A
Research Projects
[CiEtnitd ]
Research Equipment
BFTAHBRAER A Rfirss
Research-related Software Licence / Technology Licence
RUFIFRE
Setting up of Research Facilities
BRERTEE
Research Activities for Students
it
Others

e/ (2) BEEAEE
Transfers from / (to) deferred capital funds

202346 H30H K 7H 1 H 2 458k
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023

WA
Income
KRB
Grants and Donations
A EF]
Gain from Investments

SZHY

Expenditure

H7EHE

Research Projects

TFER

Research Equipment

BFEAHBRAER A Rfirs

Research-related Software Licence / Technology Licence
ERILHTERRIE

Setting up of Research Facilities

BRERTEE

Research Activities for Students

At
Others

BRI R I

Transfers to deferred capital funds

202446 H 30 H 2 &56R
Balance as at 30 June 2024

BRGRH TR HAREZEE)
UGC-funded Operations Self-financing Operations
SHLH 2 BrisERt/ SKHLN 2 g Rt/
PR RS R PR i 2R |
Research Matched Donations Research Matched Donations
Matching / Matching /

Grant Research Grants / Grant Research Grants /
HET BHET HET BET
$million $million $million $million

327 398 14 15
102 203 9 18
2 2 0 0
104 205 9 18
16 36 3 8
2 1 0 0

0 0 0 0

1 11 0 0

0 23 0 0

0 2 0 0
19 73 3 8
) 2 0 0
408 532 20 25
26 52 1 3
1 4 0 0
27 56 1 3
15 48 3 6
23 26 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
14 1 0 0
0 5 0 0
52 80 3 6
(150) (78) ®) 0
233 430 13 22
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27. BEES | FERERZEMEHE ()
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 HEREHEERRREE (8
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

() BHESASOREEtE ( "TRREREE L D
Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)

BT EIIET 2014/ 155 mEEAMFEN 2 HHI2 20 (BEHEEME) KAlZ 2032
MBI AR B B 2B MR

The SSE was launched in 2014/15 to subsidise financially needy students studying full-time locally-accredited
undergraduate (including top-up) and sub-degree programs to participate in exchange activities.

RECEE W BRSSO A Bt EIA RIS S [ S R AR T AR -« MR R Bl S TR AR 7y HiHe
BT :

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the SSE as set out in the
relevant Operating Guide of the SSE. Details of the income and expenditure of the scheme are separately disclosed as

follows:
7
3
20224F7 1 H 4368
Balance as at 1 July 2022 1,627,372
WA
Income
b=7://4 2,678,035
Subsidies
BB & (1,303,174)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REHA 7,955
Income from Investments
1,382,816
577
Expenditure
BBERTE ] (799,350)
Exchange Programs for Students
202346 /730 H R7 /71 HZ 4567
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023 2,210,838
WA
Income
V=://4 3,115,497
Subsidies
BEIRENH &) (1,622,031)
Refind of Unspent Subsidies
REWA 21,077
Income from Investments
1,514,543
it
Expenditure
BBERTE ] (1,581,100)
Exchange Programs for Students
202446 /730 H Z 454
Balance as at 30 June 2024 2,144,281
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OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 FHREREESRENE (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(b) FBEBEFE "B HESORKEEE (BRERAREFD (T—HF—8 RKEHY:E (B
ZAREE) )

Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
(“Means-tested SSEBR”)

P8 ) ORI (B AREL) 1120151650 » %5t RIS MR A B F A MEHE
BORIA B2 AE B — BRI AN -
The Means-tested SSEBR was launched in 2015/16 to encourage and support local students in receipt of means-
tested financial assistance to go on exchanges in the “Belt and Road” regions.

RECIEE I ERGIET " —%—i ) ORAMETE] (BT ASFL) ARfES N EERRETI
Ko MBI A R B SZ RIS RS 2 B R0 T

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Means-tested
SSEBR as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the SSEBR. Details of the income and expenditure of the
scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

T
$
2022487 [1 HZ 456 1,226,110
Balance as at 1 July 2022
A
Income
b=v://4 1,621,191
Subsidies
BERENHZ &) (1,053,112)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
FREEWA 5,454
Income from Investments
573,533
M
Expenditure
LA & (239,000)
Exchange Programs for Students
20234F6 /H30 H K7 H1 H =2 4268 1,560,643
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
A
Income
y=7//4 1,677,749
Subsidies
BIERENHZ &) (1,423,942)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
FREEPRA 14,290
Income from Investments
268,097
M
Expenditure
E A (327,753)
Exchan ge Programs for Students
2024456 /730 H = 4Z6# 1,500,987

Balance as at 30 June 2024
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OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 BEBEREHEREDTE (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(0 HEEBARNHETHREDEE (RARED) (TRHRRENEE, RARED )

Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“Non-means-tested MES”)

TSR AR E, (R ARREE) 1A52019204E % - Dl ASEELABIED) - SUEIE AR
The Non-means-tested MES was launched in 2019/20 which provided non-means-tested subsidies to encourage post-
secondary students to pursue exchange activities in the Mainland.

REECUEE R HE T AHEOR AR, (R AREE) AR PR IRFTETHRRR - FHBAWA
KSR AR I EE T

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Non-means-tested MES
as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the Non-means-tested MES. Details of the income and expenditure of the
scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

r
8
20224F7 1 HZ 448k 679,262
Balance as at 1 July 2022
BA
Income
v/ 971,421
Subsidies
B[ KB H = R (670,864)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
FREEWA 3,589
Income from Investments
304,146
i
Expenditure
LA (50,400)
Exchange Programs for Students
2023476 /730 H 7 A1 HZ 458 933,008
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
WA
Income
=74 961,644
Subsidies
BERENHZ & (892,997)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REWA 8,462
Income from Investments
77,109
i
Expenditure
LR AT E (142,200)
Exchange Programs for Students
202446 30 H Z 4567 867,917

Balance as at 30 June 2024
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OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 BESEEHEREEDE (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(@) EEBAFE "B WEREHEE (RARFE) (T —F—8 IAEEEED
(BARFR))
Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
(“Non-means-tested SSEBR”)

M%) ZOREBET# (RABEE) HAF2019204F » Dl ABEERSROE) - S F24mE
— T REHIE SR -
The Non-means-tested SSEBR was launched in 2019/20 which provided non-means-tested subsidies to encourage post-
secondary students to pursue exchange activities in the “Belt and Road” regions.

RECEE ARG T SOREIETE (RAREE) ARES NSRRI - AHR
WA B Bl SRR AR o BB BR 40 T

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Non-means-tested
SSEBR as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the Non-means-tested SSEBR. Details of the income and
expenditure of the scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

T
8
2022457 A1 HZ 4568 2,185,991
Balance as at 1 July 2022
RA
Income
=7:/4 2,931,787
Subsidies
BJEIRENTZ &) (1,961,895)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
RERA 10,925
Income from Investments
980,817
ZH]
Expenditure
LA #H (365,100)
Exchange Programs for Students
20234F6 30 ] R7 H1 H 2 4568 2,801,708
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2023
BA
Income
V=744 3,001,041
Subsidies
B[R Z R (2,520,845)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REERA 25,664
Income from Investments
505,860
i
Expenditure
LRI TET ] (520,500)
Exchange Programs for Students
2024456 H30 H.Z456% 2,787,068

Balance as at 30 June 2024
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